

**ORDER OF THE STATE OF WISCONSIN
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
ADOPTING RULES**

The Wisconsin Department of Transportation adopts an order to repeal TRANS 131.02(3), (4), (11), (14), (16), (27), (30), (32), (33), (43), (47) and (49), 131.03(6)(a)3., (b), Table 2, (c), (d)6., 7. and 9., (7), (9), (10)(b)1., (d)2., (11)(a) and (g) to (i), (13)(b) to (d), (15)(a)9. to 11., 18. and 27., 131.04(2)(a), 131.05(2), and 131.11(2)(a) and (b); to amend TRANS 131.01(2), 131.02(6), (6r), (10), (22), (25), (34), (35), (50m), (53) and (54), 131.03(title), (1)(a), (c), (d)(note), (2)(intro.) and (a), (b)(note), (3)(intro.), (d) and (h), (4), (6)(d)1., 3., 5., 8. and 10., (10)(a)2., (b)2., (11)(m) to (o), (12), (13)(a), (14), (15)(a)(intro.), (a)14. and 23., (b) and (c), 131.04(1)(intro.), (a), (b), and (c)1. and 2., 131.05(3), 131.07(1)(intro.), (a) and (2), 131.09(3), 131.11(1)(a) and (2)(e), 131.12(3), 131.13(1)(a), (a)6., (2), (5)(a) and (b), and (6)(c), 131.14(1), (2)(a), (4) and (5)(f), and 131.16(2)(b), (c) and (3); to repeal and recreate TRANS 131.02(8), 131.03(5) and (6)(d)2., and 131.12(2); and to create TRANS 131.02(1m) and (56m), and 131.04(2)(d), relating to vehicle emission inspection program.

Analysis Prepared by the Wisconsin Department of Transportation

Statutes interpreted: ss. 110.20 and 285.30, Stats.

Statutory authority: ss. 110.06, 110.20(9), and 227.11, Stats.

Explanation of agency authority: The Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT) is required to provide an emissions inspections program of nonexempt vehicles customarily kept in a number of counties in Wisconsin. WisDOT is required to promulgate rules specifying procedures for inspection of vehicles, including the method of measuring emissions and the types of equipment that may be used in such measurement. The procedures and methods used must be capable of being correlated with procedures established under federal law.

Related statute or rule: Section 110.20, Stats., Ch. Trans 131, Wis. Adm. Code.

Plain language analysis: This rule amendment conforms ch. Trans 131 to statutory changes in the vehicle inspection and maintenance program, enacted in 2007 Wis. Act 20. The program is changed to:

- Eliminate emission inspection of vehicles model year 1995 and earlier (previously, vehicles model year 1968 and newer required testing).
- Add emission inspection of vehicles model year 2007 and later up to 14,000 lbs. gross vehicle weight rating while limiting vehicles model year 2006 and earlier to 8,500 lbs gross vehicle weight rating (previously, all vehicles up to 10,000 lbs had required testing).

- Add emission inspection of vehicles model year 2007 and later that are powered by diesel fuel.
- Allow the Department to establish methods for emission testing, and delivery of testing services in addition to the previously established method of a single contractor under contract to the Department.

In this rule, the Department establishes as the testing method the second-generation on-board diagnostic test (OBD II), and establishes as the service delivery method a possibility of a contractor who performs the test at its own facilities, or by subcontracted testing at subcontractors' facilities, or at self-service facilities where a vehicle owner may test the vehicle; and transmission of test results and repair information to the Department electronically in a format specified by the Department.

This rule eliminates the previously-established idle and transient tailpipe testing methods, and the emission equipment inspection, leaving only the OBD II method. This amendment repeals references in the rule related to these now eliminated testing methods.

In addition, this rule eliminates the evaporative emission test ("gas cap test"), which was previously required but is no longer necessary with OBD II technology.

The rule clarifies that to obtain a waiver of compliance on the basis of statutory repair cost limit, the vehicle must pass a waiver emission equipment inspection.

Under law, emission testing is required based on where a vehicle is customarily kept, as stated by the vehicle owner or lessee. This rule makes clear that the Department may determine whether a vehicle domicile as stated is consistent with the vehicle owner or lessee address or other information. The purpose is to deter statement that the vehicle is not customarily kept in the emission area in order to avoid the emission test requirement.

In addition, the adoption of Trans 131 will give the Department the authority to use federal standards by which test procedures are governed. The Attorney General's office has consented to the incorporation by reference of the USEPA publication "Performing Onboard Diagnostic System Checks as Part of a Vehicle Inspection and Maintenance Program," dated June 2001, under the provision of § 227.21(2), Stats.

Summary of, and preliminary comparison with, existing or proposed federal regulation: The vehicle emission inspection and maintenance program exists to comply with federal law and regulations under the Clean Air Act and amendments. The Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) has established the inspection and maintenance program as one of several measures to reduce air pollution. DNR has received approval from the federal Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) for all Wisconsin's air pollution reduction measures. The program change enacted in 2007 Wisconsin Act 20 and in this rule amendment has been approved by USEPA, and this rule conforms to federal regulations.

Comparison with Rules in the Following States:

Michigan: Michigan has no vehicle inspection and maintenance program, and consequently no rules addressing such.

Minnesota: Minnesota has no vehicle inspection and maintenance program, and consequently no rules addressing such. State rules prohibit motorists from:

- Permitting vehicles to emit visible air contaminants for more than 10 consecutive seconds (non-diesel cycle engines) or more than 20 consecutive seconds (diesel cycle engines), and
- Removing, altering, or otherwise rendering inoperative any vehicle air pollution control system.

Illinois: Emissions testing is prescribed under the Illinois Vehicle Emissions Inspection Law [625 Illinois Compiled Statutes 5/13C (2005)]. The Inspection Law requires biennial inspection of 1996 and newer model year light-duty vehicles, light-duty trucks, and heavy-duty vehicles. Diesel-powered vehicles, motorcycles and other specified vehicle/registration types are exempt from inspection. Vehicles do not require inspection until they are four model years old.

Per the Inspection Law, the emissions test(s) to be performed on each vehicle consists of one of the following alternatives:

1. On-board diagnostics test.
2. Idle exhaust and gas cap pressure test.

The former applies to all OBD II-equipped vehicles; the latter to remaining testable vehicles.

Iowa: Iowa has no vehicle inspection and maintenance program, and consequently no rules addressing such.

Summary of factual data and analytical methodologies used and how the related findings support the regulatory approach chosen: The program change enacted in 2007 Wis. Act 20 and in this rule results from a joint study by the Wisconsin DNR and DOT. The agencies studied the age of the Wisconsin vehicle fleet, the existence and efficacy of OBD II technology on vehicles, and the costs and benefits of various methods of emission testing. The agencies concluded that sufficient numbers of newer model year vehicles, equipped with OBD II technology, now exist in the vehicle fleet that it is cost-effective to eliminate testing of older vehicles and eliminate tailpipe testing, and the overall air pollution reduction level is maintained.

Analysis and supporting documentation used to determine effect on small businesses: In establishing the new emission program design, DOT and DNR studied the age of the Wisconsin vehicle fleet. The agencies have determined that most vehicles in the fleet are within the 1996-current model year range, and that older vehicles have largely been removed from the fleet. The likelihood is that small businesses own newer vehicles, equipped with OBD II technology. As a result, while more vehicles are made subject to emission testing under the new law, the cost per vehicle to comply should be reduced. To the extent that small businesses still own older vehicles, those vehicles are no longer subject to testing and repair.

Effect on small business: Section 285.30, Stats., as amended by 2007 Wis. Act 20, eliminates the testing requirement for vehicles model year before 1996. To the extent that small businesses own older vehicles, the law eliminates the need for those vehicles to be tested. The law also requires diesel-powered vehicles of model year 2007 and newer, and vehicles model year 2007 and newer up to 14,000 lbs gross vehicle weight rating to undergo OBD II emission testing. On the other hand, these vehicles are manufactured with OBD II equipment and software, and maintaining the vehicles' emission systems is a reasonable expectation, and thus not unduly burdensome. The statute provides for enforcement of emission testing through vehicle registration denial. The Department's Regulatory Review Coordinator may be contacted by e-mail at ralph.sanders@dot.state.wi.us, or by calling (414) 438-4585.

Fiscal effect: Section 285.30, Stats., as amended by 2007 Wis. Act 20, eliminates the testing requirement for vehicles model year before 1996. To the extent that local governments own older vehicles, the law eliminates the need for those vehicles to be tested and repaired. The law also requires diesel-powered vehicles of model year 2007 and newer, and vehicles model year 2007 and newer up to 14,000 lbs gross vehicle weight rating to undergo OBD II emission testing. On the other hand, these vehicles are manufactured with OBD II equipment and software, and maintaining the vehicles' emission systems is a reasonable expectation, and thus not unduly burdensome. The statute provides for enforcement of emission testing through vehicle registration denial.

Anticipated costs incurred by private sector: Section 285.30, Stats., as amended by 2007 Wis. Act 20, eliminates the testing requirement for vehicles model year before 1996. To the extent that state or private sector entities own older vehicles, the law eliminates the need for those vehicles to be tested and repaired. The law also requires diesel-powered vehicles of model year 2007 and newer, and vehicles model year 2007 and newer up to 14,000 lbs gross vehicle weight rating to undergo OBD II emission testing. On the other hand, these vehicles are manufactured with OBD II equipment and software, and maintaining the vehicles' emission systems is a reasonable expectation, and thus not unduly burdensome. The statute provides for enforcement of emission testing through vehicle registration denial.

Contact person and copies of rule: Copies of the rule can be obtained, without cost, by writing to Steve Hirshfeld, Department of Transportation, Bureau of Vehicle Services, Room 253, P. O. Box 7909, Madison, WI 53707-7909. You may also contact

Steve Hirshfeld by phone at (608) 266-2267 or via e-mail: stephen.hirshfeld@dot.state.wi.us.

TEXT OF RULE

SECTION 1. Trans 131.01(2) is amended to read:

Trans 131.01(2) APPLICABILITY. This chapter applies to all nonexempt vehicles customarily kept in those counties certified by the department of natural resources under s. 110.20 (5) (a), Stats. It also applies to all nonexempt vehicles customarily kept in any county whose board of supervisors has adopted a resolution under s. 110.20 (5) (b), Stats., requesting the department establish an inspection and maintenance program, and applies to any nonexempt vehicle which a person presents for a voluntary inspection at an inspection station pursuant to s. 110.20 (7), Stats., and s. Trans 131.07. For purposes of determining where a vehicle is customarily kept, the county of domicile as indicated by the vehicle owner and contained in the department's title database shall be used. In the absence of an indicated county of domicile, the owner or lessee's post office address shall be used to determine county of domicile. The department may determine whether the vehicle domicile location is consistent with the owner or lessee's post office address or with other information that indicates the customary location of the vehicle. The department may change a vehicle domicile location in department title records to make it consistent with the results of its determination, and may require the vehicle to undergo emission testing as required in this chapter. If the vehicle owner or lessee disputes the department's determination, the vehicle owner or lessee may present evidence satisfactory to the department of the correct vehicle domicile location. The department decision as to correct vehicle domicile location shall be the final decision of the department.

Note: Forms used in this chapter are ~~MVD MV~~ 2016, substitute renewal notice; ~~MVD MV~~ 2470, vehicle inspection report; ~~MVD MV~~ 2472, application for letter of temporary exemption from emission test requirements; MV 2588, exchanged engine certificate; MV 2594, quality assurance inspection report. Copies can be obtained from the Wisconsin Department of Transportation, ~~Vehicle Emission Dealer and Agent~~ Section, P. O. Box 7909, Madison, WI 53707-7909.

SECTION 2. Trans 131.02(1m) is created to read:

Trans 131.02(1m) “Authorized inspection facility” means a self-service inspection facility, or a private testing facility, or an inspection station, authorized by the department to perform emission testing.

SECTION 3. Trans 131.02(3) and (4) are repealed.

SECTION 4. Trans 131.02(6) and (6r) are amended to read:

Trans 131.02(6) “Contractor” means a person with whom the department has a contract that provides for the operation of one or more inspection stations or for the performance of emission testing at an authorized inspection facility other than an inspection station or for the performance of a service related to the Wisconsin vehicle emission inspection program.

(6r) “DTC” means diagnostic trouble code stored by a vehicle’s OBD II system.

SECTION 5. Trans 131.02(8) is repealed and recreated to read:

Trans 131.02(8) “Electronic reporting,” “electronically reported” or “reported electronically” means reported directly to the department or its contractor electronically in a format specified by the department.

SECTION 6. Trans 131.02(10) is amended to read:

Trans 131.02(10) “Emission test” means the ~~transient emission test or 2-speed idle test described in the federal rule, used to determine compliance with applicable vehicle exhaust emission limitations for carbon monoxide, hydrocarbons, and oxides of nitrogen~~ OBD II test.

SECTION 7. Trans 131.02(11), (14) and (16) are repealed.

SECTION 8. Trans 131.02(22) and (25) are amended to read:

Trans 131.02(22) “Inspection” means the mandatory vehicle emission inspection required by s. 110.20, Stats., consisting of an ~~emission test~~ or OBD II inspection.

(25) “Inspector” means the individual who performs the vehicle emission inspection for the contractor or subcontractor.

SECTION 9. Trans 131.02(27), (30), (32) and (33) are repealed.

SECTION 10. Trans 131.02(34) to (35) are amended to read:

Trans 131.02(34) “OBD II” means the on-board diagnostic system installed on ~~1994~~ 1996 and newer vehicles by the manufacturer that meets the regulations promulgated by the USEPA under 42 USC 7401–7671q.

(34m) “OBD inspection” or “OBD II inspection” means an emissions related test in which the vehicle’s on-board computer is accessed to evaluate the status of the vehicle’s emission control system.

(35) “Performance monitoring” means the system of evaluating automotive repair facilities’ performance by collecting and reporting the repair data as recorded on the vehicle inspection report or as reported electronically, upon performance of the repair.

SECTION 11. Trans 131.02(43), (47) and (49) are repealed.

SECTION 12. Trans 131.02(50m), (53) and (54) are amended to read:

Trans 131.02(50m) “USEPA technical guidance” means the USEPA publication ~~“IM 240 & Evap Technical Guidance~~ Performing Onboard Diagnostic System Checks as Part of a Vehicle Inspection and Maintenance Program,” dated ~~August, 1998,~~ June, 2001, which is incorporated herein by reference. Any alternative test procedures or

changes in procedural details shall be approved by the USEPA administrator prior to use.

Note: Copies are on file with the ~~Revisor of Statutes~~ Legislative Reference Bureau and the Attorney General's office. These procedures are available in published form from the Wisconsin Department of Transportation, Bureau of Field Services, P. O. Box ~~8947~~ 7909, Room ~~266~~ 253, Madison, WI 53707-~~8947~~7909 and can be accessed on the internet at ~~http://www.epa.gov/otaq/regs/im.htm~~ <http://www.epa.gov/otaq/regs/im/obd/r01015.pdf>

(53) "Vehicle inspection notice" means a document mailed to vehicle owners as a result of failing a remote sensing test indicating that the nonexempt vehicle has been inspected in accordance with the provisions of s. Trans 131.14 and, if necessary, shall be presented at an inspection station or other authorized inspection facility for inspection under s. 110.20 (6) (a) 4, Stats.

(54) "Vehicle inspection report" means a serially numbered document issued at an inspection station or technical assistance center at the time of vehicle inspection, indicating that the vehicle has been inspected in accordance with the provisions of this chapter, and may include data reported electronically.

SECTION 13. Trans 131.02(56m) is created to read:

Trans 131.02(56m) "Waiver" means a conditional one-cycle exemption from emission testing that may be granted to a vehicle owner or lessee.

SECTION 14. Trans 131.03(title), (1)(a), (c), (d)(note), (2)(intro.) and (a), (b)(note), (3)(intro.), (d) and (h) and (4) are amended to read:

Trans 131.03 Emission test, ~~emission equipment inspection, evaporative emission test, OBD inspection, and reinspection.~~ (1) GENERAL. (a) All nonexempt vehicles that are customarily kept in counties certified under s. 110.20 (5) (a), Stats., or in a county whose county board adopts a resolution under s. 110.20 (5) (b), Stats., shall be inspected at an inspection station as provided in this chapter. Penalty for failure to

comply with this section consists of either denial of registration renewal or suspension of vehicle registration as set forth in s. 341.63 (1) (e), Stats. ~~To reinstate vehicle registration, a fee prescribed by s. 341.36 (1), Stats., is required.~~

(c) ~~Following initial registration of a new vehicle by a retail purchaser, a minimum of one model year shall elapse prior to the vehicle becoming~~ A vehicle is first subject to the requirements of this chapter when the vehicle is 4 model years old.

Note: For example, a ~~1993~~ 2004 model year vehicle shall be considered as being more than ~~5~~ 4 model years old commencing January 1, ~~1998~~ 2008.

(2) WHEN INSPECTION REQUIRED. Nonexempt vehicles subject to an inspection shall have the inspection completed ~~at an inspection station~~ as provided in this chapter when any of the following apply:

(a) No more than 180 days prior to renewal of annual registration. ~~In the 2nd year after the nonexempt vehicle's model year~~ This requirement applies when the vehicle is 4 model years old and every 2 years thereafter.

Note: For example, a ~~1996~~ 2004 model year vehicle shall be considered as being more than ~~5~~ 4 model years old commencing January 1, ~~2004~~ 2008.

(3) DOCUMENT REQUIREMENTS. Each vehicle presented for inspection at an inspection station or at an authorized inspection facility shall be accompanied by at least one of the following documents which identifies the vehicle by make, model year, VIN, and license plate number:

(d) A vehicle inspection report if a reinspection, unless repair performance data has, upon performance of the repair, been reported electronically.

(h) A properly completed voluntary inspection request form, obtainable from the manager at each of the inspection stations or at other authorized inspection facilities as determined by the department.

(4) SCOPE AND NATURE OF TEST. The vehicle emission test shall consist of ~~sampling the exhaust emissions from the tailpipe or tailpipes, and measuring the hydrocarbons, carbon monoxide, carbon dioxide and oxides of nitrogen. For 1996 and newer vehicles equipped with OBD II systems, the test shall consist of an OBD II~~ inspection which indicates whether the MIL is commanded on and, if so, the DTCs causing the command.

SECTION 15. Trans 131.03(5) is repealed and recreated to read:

Trans 131.03(5) EMISSION STANDARDS. (a) Vehicles that meet any of the following conditions shall fail the inspection:

1. The DLC is missing, has been tampered with, or is otherwise inoperable.
2. The MIL does not illuminate at all when the ignition key is turned to the “key on, engine off” position.
3. The MIL illuminates continuously or flashes when the vehicle is in the “key on, engine running “ condition, even if no DTCs are present.
4. A scan tool indicates that any DTCs are present and that the vehicle’s MIL status is commanded on.

(b) If the MIL is not commanded to be illuminated, the vehicle shall pass the OBD inspection, even if DTCs are present.

SECTION 16. Trans 131.03(6)(a)3., (b), TABLE 2 and (c) are repealed.

SECTION 17. Trans 131.03(6)(d)1. is amended to read:

Trans 131.03(6)(d) *OBD inspection procedures.* 1. An OBD II inspection shall be performed on all model year 1996 and newer vehicles equipped with OBD II systems. The OBD inspection shall be performed according to the procedures specified in section 85.2222 of the federal rule.

SECTION 18. Trans 131.03(6)(d)2. is repealed and recreated to read:

Trans 131.03(6)(d)2. If the vehicle's DLC cannot be located, or is located such that an inspector cannot reasonably access it during the course of a vehicle inspection, the vehicle shall receive a waiver equipment inspection as provided in s. Trans 131.05 and, pending the outcome of this inspection, be referred to a technical assistance center for issuance of a technical waiver of compliance as provided in s. Trans 131.04(1)(b).

SECTION 19. Trans 131.03(6)(d)3. and 5. are amended to read:

Trans 131.03(6)(d)3. The inspector shall connect the test system to the vehicle by connecting the vehicle's DLC to the ~~lane~~ OBD II test system. The test system shall determine what readiness monitors are supported by the vehicle's OBD II system, and perform a readiness evaluation for applicable readiness monitors in accordance with the USEPA technical guidance. If the readiness evaluation indicates that any on-board tests are not complete, the vehicle shall be rejected from testing. Vehicles rejected because on-board tests are not complete shall be ~~tested according to the procedures specified in par. (b)~~ required to leave the test station, pursue a means of completing on-board tests, and return for testing.

5. If the ~~lane~~ test computer system is not able to download the vehicle OBD II records, the OBD inspection shall be aborted, and the vehicle shall be ~~tested according to the procedures specified in par. (b)~~ retested with an OBD II test in a separate inspection facility test lane.

SECTION 20. Trans 131.03(6)(d)6. and 7. are repealed.

SECTION 21. Trans 131.03(6)(d)8. is amended to read:

Trans 131.06(d)8. If the malfunction indicator status indicates that the MIL has been commanded to be illuminated, the ~~vehicle shall fail the OBD inspection and the~~ test system shall record all DTCs resulting in MIL illumination in the vehicle test record.

SECTION 22. Trans 131.03(6)(d)9. is repealed.

SECTION 23. Trans 131.03(6)(d)10. is amended to read:

Trans 131.03(6)(d)10. ~~Failing the OBD inspection is considered the same as failing the inspection.~~ Vehicles failing the OBD inspection may not be reregistered within the state of Wisconsin until such failing items have been repaired or replaced if necessary as required by s. 285.30 (6), Stats.

SECTION 24. Trans 131.03(7) to (9) are repealed.

SECTION 25. Trans 131.03(10)(a)2. is amended to read:

Trans 131.03(10)(a)2. The vehicle shall be accompanied by its previous vehicle inspection reports. Repair information, as completed by the person performing the repairs, shall be indicated in the space provided on the reports, unless it is reported electronically, upon performance of the repair. The completed repair section on the vehicle inspection report, or the data reported electronically, shall indicate all of the following:

SECTION 26. Trans 131.03(10)(b)1. is repealed.

SECTION 27. Trans 131.03(10)(b)2. is amended to read:

Trans 131.03(10)(b)2. A vehicle that fails the OBD inspection shall be reinspected after repair provided a readiness evaluation indicates that ~~all~~:

a. All applicable on-board tests are complete for the component for which the vehicle failed its prior inspection, and

b. All applicable on-board tests are complete except as allowed under sub. (6)
(d).

Note: For example, a catalytic monitor must be ready after a catalyst is repaired.

SECTION 28. Trans 131.03(10)(d)2. is amended to read:

Trans 131.03(10)(d)2. If the vehicle does not meet applicable emission ~~limitations~~ test standards, the owner or lessee may apply for a waiver of compliance from ~~emission test~~ these standards in accord with s. Trans 131.04.

SECTION 29. Trans 131.03(11)(a) and (g) to (i) are repealed.

SECTION 30. Trans 131.03(11)(m) to (o), (12) and (13)(a) are amended to read:

Trans 131.03(11)(m) Upon a reinspection, the vehicle operator fails to provide a properly completed repair form to the inspector, unless the repair information is reported electronically, upon performance of the repair.

(n) The vehicle exhibits any condition which is recognized as a safety hazard by the contractor, or any condition that appears to the contractor as making the vehicle unsafe for testing.

(o) Vehicles ~~subject to the OBD inspection under sub. (6) (d)~~ shall be rejected from testing if a scan of the vehicle's OBD II system reveals a "not ready" status for 3 or more readiness monitors on model year 1996 through model year 2000 vehicles, or for 2 or more readiness monitors on model year 2001 and newer vehicles, as provided in 40 CFR 85.2222(c)(2). ~~Vehicles rejected from testing for this reason shall be tested according to the provisions of sub. (6) (b).~~

(12) RECONSTRUCTED AND HOMEMADE VEHICLES. Any nonexempt vehicle registered as reconstructed or homemade under s. 341.268, Stats., shall be inspected for compliance with ~~both the exhaust emission standards and emission~~

~~equipment~~ requirements applicable to the model year of the vehicle as indicated on the vehicle's registration documents, unless the owner both requests that the vehicle be inspected by engine year and provides a completed MV2588, exchanged engine certification form, to the waiver investigator. In addition, the vehicle owner shall locate the engine number on the engine for purposes of engine year verification by the waiver investigator.

(13) VEHICLES WITH EXCHANGED ENGINES. (a) A motor vehicle with an exchanged engine shall be ~~inspected for compliance with the emission standards applicable to the model year of the vehicle~~ subject to OBD II inspection compliance standards established in s. Trans 131.03(5).

SECTION 31. Trans 131.03(13)(b) to (d) are repealed.

SECTION 32. Trans 131.03(14) and (15)(a)(intro.) are amended to read:

Trans 131.03(14) TRUCKS AND VANS. All trucks and vans shall be inspected in accord with the ~~exhaust emission standards, emission equipment and evaporative emission~~ standards applicable to the manufacturer's GVWR as indicated either in the vehicle's identification number or on the vehicle's doorpost. If there is no manufacturer's GVWR available, then the vehicle shall be inspected according to the registered GVWR as indicated on the vehicle's entry document described in sub. (3).

(15) VEHICLE INSPECTION REPORT. (a)(intro.) The operator of each vehicle inspected shall receive a vehicle inspection report, ~~MVD~~ MV 2470, at the conclusion of the inspection. The vehicle inspection report data may also be reported electronically. The inspection report, or the vehicle inspection report data reported electronically, shall indicate:

SECTION 33. Trans 131.03(15)(a)9. to 11. are repealed.

SECTION 34. Trans 131.03(15)(a)14. is amended to read:

Trans 131.03(15)(a)14. Instructions indicating that the inspection report, together with the vehicle, shall be returned to any inspection station or other authorized inspection facility for reinspection to occur.

SECTION 35. Trans 131.03(15)(a)23. is amended to read:

Trans 131.03(15)(a)23. Inspection station or other authorized inspection facility number, and inspector ~~numbers~~ number if the test is performed by an inspector.

SECTION 36. Trans 131.03(15)(a)27. is repealed.

SECTION 37. Trans 131.03(15)(b) and (c) are amended to read:

Trans 131.03(15)(b) Each operator of a vehicle failing ~~any portion of~~ the inspection shall receive an inspection report supplement containing repair, reinspection and waiver application instructions, as well as information on the possible causes of failure found during the inspection.

(c) Each operator of a vehicle failing ~~any portion of~~ the initial inspection shall receive a list of registered automotive emission repair facilities by ~~emission inspection station~~ area which includes information required under s. Trans 131.15. This listing may include other consumer information useful in obtaining vehicle emission repair service.

SECTION 38. Trans 131.04(1)(intro.), (a), (b) and (c)1. and 2. are amended to read:

Trans 131.04(1)(intro.) ELIGIBILITY. A vehicle which fails ~~to pass the designated emission test standards or OBD inspection upon an~~ the initial inspection, and which after repair or adjustment, or both, again fails ~~to pass the emission inspection or OBD~~ inspection, shall be eligible for a waiver of compliance valid until the next required inspection of the vehicle provided the following conditions are met:

(a) For all ~~1981~~ 1996 and newer model year vehicles which have not exceeded the terms of the manufacturer's emission performance or defect warranty coverage at the time of the scheduled emission inspection, the operator shall either present a written statement from a vehicle dealership or other manufacturer's designated agent declaring that the vehicle is not eligible for emission control system warranty work, or present a dated invoice indicating that the vehicle has received eligible emission control system warranty work.

(b) The emission related repairs and adjustments made to the vehicle's emission control system, including cost for parts and labor, have been performed on the vehicle within 180 days prior to renewal of annual registration or within 180 days of vehicle ownership change registration and such repairs and adjustments are indicated in the space provided on the vehicle inspection report by the person performing the repairs, unless the repair information is reported electronically, upon performance of the repair. If the labor for vehicle repair is performed without charge or cost, only the cost of replacement parts shall be indicated. An itemized receipt indicating the parts, labor cost, and date of purchase shall be provided to the waiver investigator.

(c)1. For all ~~1981 and newer model year~~ vehicles which have exceeded the terms of the manufacturer's emission performance or defect warranty coverage at the time of the scheduled emission inspection, the owner shall have emission related repairs performed on the vehicle at a recognized repair facility as defined in s. Trans 131.02 (39) or by a recognized automotive emission repair technician as defined in s. Trans 131.02 (38). The operator shall present a vehicle inspection report with the repair information section completed according to s. Trans 131.03 (13), unless it is reported electronically, upon performance of the repair. The statement shall contain the actual

cost of emission related repairs performed on the vehicle including itemized costs for parts and labor. If the labor for vehicle repair is performed without charge or cost, only the cost of replacement parts shall be indicated. An itemized receipt indicating the parts, labor cost and date of repair shall be provided to the waiver investigator.

2. ~~Through the period ending November 30, 1997, proof~~ Proof of recognized automotive emission repair technician training ~~shall consist of either National Institute for Automotive Excellence (ASE) certification in level 6, 8, L1, or valid documentation indicating successful completion of a Wisconsin emission technician training (WISETECH) course under s. Trans 131.16, or an equivalent program as determined by the department.~~ After November 30, 1997, proof of this training shall consist of either ASE certification in level L1, or valid documentation indicating successful completion of a WISETECH course under s. Trans 131.16 or an equivalent program as determined by the department.

SECTION 39. Trans 131.04(2)(a) is repealed.

SECTION 40. Trans 131.04(2)(d) is created to read:

Trans 131.04(2)(d) If the owner is in compliance with the requirements set forth in s. 110.20(13), Stats., the department shall issue a waiver of compliance as required by s. 110.20(13), Stats.

SECTION 41. Trans 131.05(2) is repealed.

SECTION 42. Trans 131.05(3) is amended to read:

Trans 131.05(3) CONSEQUENCES. Vehicles failing the waiver emission equipment inspection shall not receive a waiver of compliance or acceptance for voluntary testing under s. Trans 131.07 until the failing emission equipment items are either repaired or replaced, ~~except as allowed by s. Trans 131.03 (12) or (13).~~

SECTION 43. Trans 131.07(1)(intro.), (a) and (2) are amended to read:

Trans 131.07(1)(intro.) CRITERIA. The contractor shall inspect any nonexempt vehicle presented for inspection at an inspection station or other authorized inspection facility provided:

(a) The vehicle operator provides a properly completed request for voluntary emission inspection form, obtainable from the manager at each of the emission inspection stations or at other authorized inspection facilities as determined by the department.

(2) EFFECT. The voluntary presentation of a vehicle for inspection in accordance with sub. (1) shall not impose any requirement upon a vehicle owner to comply with this chapter ~~except for the repair or replacement of any failing emission equipment inspection items as required under s. Trans 131.03 (7) (c).~~

SECTION 44. Trans 131.09(3) is amended to read:

Trans 131.09(3) ISSUANCE. Upon ~~receipt of the fee under s. 341.36 (1), Stats.,~~ and approval of the application, the department shall issue a temporary license plate to the vehicle owner or lessee. Such plate shall contain the date of expiration. The owner or lessee shall affix the temporary license plate to the vehicle in accord with the requirements of s. 341.09 (5), Stats.

SECTION 45. Trans 131.11(1)(a) is amended to read:

Trans 131.11(1)(a) All contractor inspection functions, including those occurring at the inspection stations, other authorized testing facilities, technical assistance centers and vehicles used to conduct remote sensing, shall be audited on an unscheduled basis, at a minimum, according to the frequency established in the federal rule.

SECTION 46. Trans 131.11(2)(a) and (b) are repealed.

SECTION 47. Trans 131.11(2)(e) is amended to read:

Trans 131.11(2)(e) If equipment fails to operate within contractually specified tolerance during an overt or covert audit, the department's quality assurance auditor shall immediately re-audit the failing equipment. If the equipment fails again, the department's quality assurance auditor shall require the station manager to close the affected lane or other authorized inspection facility or emission test operation until such time as the equipment is properly repaired and documentation of corrective actions is available for review by the department.

SECTION 48. Trans 131.12(2) is repealed and recreated to read:

Trans 131.12(2) SPECIFICATIONS. Equipment used to perform OBD inspections shall meet the most current version of each of the following SAE International standards: J1850, J1962, J1978, and J1979.

SECTION 49. Trans 131.12(3) is amended to read:

Trans 131.12(3) QUALITY CONTROL. All equipment used in the emission testing process shall be ~~calibrated and maintained according to the procedures specified in the federal rule and USEPA technical guidance sections 85.2234 and 85.2235~~ maintained according to all manufacturer specifications.

SECTION 50. Trans 131.13(1)(a), (a)6., (2), (5)(a) and (b), and (6)(c) are amended to read:

Trans 131.13(1) TRAINING. (a) All contractor employees and all employees of any authorized inspection facility subcontractor who perform any official inspection functions shall have a license issued by the contractor. No person may either receive a license or have a license renewed as an inspector unless the person demonstrates to the department, by training and examination, proficiency in all of the following:

6. Test equipment operation, ~~calibration~~ and maintenance.

(2) LICENSING. Upon completion of training and all other licensing requirements, the contractor shall issue a photo identification badge containing the inspector's photograph, name, unique, non-transferable inspector number and the expiration date of the inspector's license. Training and licensing records for each employee so licensed shall be maintained both at the contractor's headquarters and at the employee's primary inspection station or other authorized inspection facility.

(5) PENALTIES. (a) Failure of either the contractor or any of its employees or of any authorized inspection facility subcontractor or its employees to pass any portion of an overt or covert audit shall result in the imposition of a penalty. These penalties, established in the penalty schedule section of the contract, may require that the contractor either suspend or revoke inspector licenses or incur liquidated damages, or both.

(b) Contractor or subcontractor employees who are removed from inspection duties through either suspension or revocation of their inspection license as a result of a department audit may appeal the contractor's suspension or revocation to the department's hearing officer. In the case of immediate suspension due to a department audit, a hearing shall occur within 14 calendar days of the department's receipt of a written request by the employee. Failure of the department to hold a hearing within 14 days when requested shall cause the suspension to lapse.

(c) Results of the technical assistance center inspection shall supersede the results of the contested station lane or other authorized inspection facility inspection.

SECTION 51. Trans 131.14(1), (2)(a), (4) and (5)(f) are amended to read:

Trans 131.14 Remote sensing. (1) GENERAL. The contractor shall use remote sensing to measure the in-use vehicle emissions in any county identified under s. 110.20 (5), Stats. Any nonexempt vehicle that has passed its last emission reinspection under s. Trans 131.03 (11), and fails the remote sensing test by exceeding the remote emission standards under sub. (4), shall have an ~~enhanced~~ emission inspection under s. 110.20 (9) (g), Stats. Penalty for failure to comply with this section consists of suspension of vehicle registration as set forth in s. 341.63 (1) (e), Stats. ~~To reinstate vehicle registration, a fee prescribed by s. 341.36 (1), Stats., is required.~~

(2) WHEN INSPECTION REQUIRED. (a) The owner or lessee of a nonexempt vehicle that fails the remote sensing test shall have an ~~enhanced~~ emission inspection within 45 days of notification of a remote sensing test failure.

(4) EMISSION STANDARDS. Vehicles that exceed the standards shown in Table 1 shall fail the remote sensing test:

TABLE 1

MODEL YEAR	GVWR	REMOTE SENSING STANDARD		
		HC(ppm)	CO(%)	NO _x (%)
1992 1996 and newer	All	400	2.0	Reserved
1988 — 1991	All	450	3.0	Reserved
1981 — 1987	All	650	5.0	Reserved
1975 — 1980	All	1300	7.0	Reserved
1968 — 1974	All	1700	8.0	Reserved

(5)(f) Instructions indicating that the report, together with the vehicle, shall be brought to any inspection station or other authorized inspection facility to receive an inspection as required under s. Trans 131.14 (2), if required.

SECTION 52. Trans 131.16(2)(b), (c) and (3) are amended to read:

Trans 131.16(2)(b) Application of emission control theory and diagnostic data to the diagnosis and repair of vehicles failing ~~the transient emission test,~~ OBD inspection ~~and the evaporative system functional checks.~~

(c) Utilization of diagnostic information on systematic or repeated failures observed in ~~both the transient emission test,~~ OBD inspection ~~and the evaporative system functional checks.~~

(3) EQUIPMENT. Both private and public facilities offering WISETECH designated automotive emission repair training courses shall have available, and maintain in good working condition, tools and equipment necessary for the proper diagnosis, adjustment and repair of all nonexempt vehicles. All equipment utilized in the training courses shall be ~~calibrated and~~ maintained according to the manufacturer's specifications.

(END OF RULE TEXT)

Effective Date. This rule shall take effect on the first day of the month following publication in the Wisconsin Administrative Register as provided in s. 227.22(2)(intro.), Stats.

Signed at Madison, Wisconsin, this ____ day of May, 2008.

FRANK J. BUSALACCHI
Secretary
Wisconsin Department of Transportation